
r Dept. of Consumer Affairs v. Asset Acceptance, LLC fl kla Asset Acceptance Corp.
CITY OF NEW YORK
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
---------------------------------------------------------){
THE DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS, DECISION AND ORDER

II

Complainant,

o against 0

ASSET ACCEPTANCE, LLC
ACCEPTANCE CORP.,

Respondent.

Violation No.:
PLI044927

Respondent's Address:
f/k/a ASSET2840S Van Dyke Ave.

Warren, MI 48093

Date: July 24, 2006
--------------------------------------------------------){

A hearing on the above-captioned matter was held on May 11, 2006. 1

Appearances: For the Department: Elizabeth Lang, Esq., Deputy Director for Litigation.
For the Respondent: Arthur Sanders, Esq.; Barbara A. Sinsley, vice president.

The Notice of Hearing charged the respondent with violating Section 20-490 of the
Administrative Code of the City of New York "by acting as a debt collection agency in the
City of New York without a license therefor."

Based on the evidence in this case, I RECOMMEND the following:

Findings of Fact:



r-- . - ._--~-----,

I Respondent is a national company that buys "charged-off' (i.e., defaulted) consumer
i receivables such as credit cards, consumer loans, medical, utilities, telecom, health club,
I and auto deficiencies. Respondent regularly purchases such debt from credit issuers,
I consumer finance companies, retail merchants, telecommunications and other utility

providers, as well as resellers and others. Since at least April 10, 2003, respondent
regularly has attempted to collect the amounts owed from consumers, including those
residing in New York City, with respect to such debts.

Respondent is not, and never has been, licensed by the Department as a debt collection
agency.

Opinion

The above-stated facts are not in dispute. 2_

For the reasons set forth below, the undisputed facts thus establish that the respondent
was engaged in unlicensed debt collection agency activity from April 10, 2003 until May
11, 2006, the originally scheduled hearing date.

Respondent's argument is that, in regularly collecting or attempting to collect debts
owed or due to itself or asserted to be owed or due to itself, respondent is not "engaged in
business the principal purpose of which is to regularly collect or attempt to collect debts
owed or due or asserted to be owed or due to another " (emphasis added), within the
purported plain meaning of Section

[Rest of page intentionally left blank.]
I

20-489. ;). For the reasons stated below, I agree with the Department's contrary argument i
that the perti~ent licensing statute, New York Administrativ~ Code, Title 20, Chapter~
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It is fundamental that, in interpreting a statute, a court should attempt to
effectuate the intent of the Legislature. As the clearest indicator of legislative intent is the
statutory text, the starting point in any case of interpretation must always be the
language itself, giving effect to the plain meaning thereof. See Flores v. The Lower East
Side Center, Inc. v. Procida Realty and Construction Corp., 4 N.Y.3d 363, 795 N.Y.S.2d
491, 828 N.E.2d 593 (2005) (citing Majewski v. Broadalbin-Perth Cent. School Dist. , 91
N.Y.2d 577, 583, 573 N.Y.S.2d 966, 696 N.E.2d 978 (1998)). In Famarelli v. Marsam,
Inc. ,92 N.Y.2d 298, 608 N.Y.S.2d 440, 703 N.E.2d 251 (1998), when confronted with an
unclear statute and the question of whether it replaced a common law remedy, the New
York State Court of Appeals wrote:

n - - - --------'1

subchapter 30, Sections 20-488 et seq. ("Debt Collection Agencies"), should be interpreted I
consistently with the courts' interpretation of the term "debt collector" within the meaning .
of the federal Fair Debtor Collection Practices Act so that respondent's activities are to be

I
, considered "acting as a debt collection agency" within the meaning of, and in violation of,

Section 20-490.

I

I

[W]e acknowledge that the enactment does not explicitly utter a legislative
directionD. To answer the question, therefore 0, the Court must look beyond
the language of the statute. Our preeminent responsibility in that endeavor is
to search for and effectuate the Legislature's purpose. In this respect,
legislative history and the events associated with and occasioning the passage
of the particular statute are valuable guiding lights.

92 N.Y.2d at 303 (citations omitted). In Mowczan v. Bacon, 92 N.Y.2d 281, 680 N.Y.S.2d
431, 703 N.E.2d 242 (1998), in answering the question of whether contribution was
permissible under an unclear provision of the State's Vehicle and Traffic Law, the Court of I
Appeals stated: "In matter of statutory construction, legislative intent is the great and I
controlling principleD. Generally, inquiry must be made of the spirit and purpose of the I
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~islation, which requires examination ofthe-statutory context of theprovision as well a~-'1

I
its legislative history." Id. , 92 N.Y.2d at 285 (internal quotation marks and citations
omitted); see also Sutka v. Margaret Conners, 73 N.Y.2d 395,403,541 N.Y.S.2d 191,538
N.E.2d 1012 (1989); accord In the Matter of ATM Once, LLC , 2 N.Y.3d 472, 476, 779
N.Y.S.2d 808, 812 N.E.2d 298 (2004). I

Section 20-490 provides, in pertinent part, that "[ilt shall be unlawful for any person to I'

act as a debt collection agency without first having obtained a license in accordance with
the provisions of this subchapterD." Section 20-489(a) defines "debt collection agency" as, '
with enumerated exclusions, "a person engaged in business the principal purpose of
which is to regularly collect or attempt to collect debts owed or due or asserted to be owed
or due to another" (emphasis added). See also Section 20-488 ("Legislative declaration")
("The council hereby finds the presence of consumer related problems with respect to the
practices of debt collection agencies whose sole concern is the collection of debts owed to
their clientsD.") (emphasis added).

The Department argues, inter alia, that the treatment of "debt collectors' under the
federal Fair Debtor Collection Practices Act (FDCPA), 15 U.S.C. Section 1692 et seq. ,
should provide consistent guidance. The FDCPA, unlike the city statute at issue, makes a
pointed definitional distinguishment between "debt collectors" and "creditors." Creditors,
"who generally are restrained by a desire to protect their good will when collecting past
due accounts," S. Rep. 95-382, at 5 (1977), are not covered by the FDCPA. Instead, the
Act is aimed at debt collectors, who may have "no future contact with the consumer and
often are unconcerned with the consumer's opinion of them." See id. In general, a creditor
is broadly defined as one who "offers or extends credit creating a debt or to whom a debt
is owed," 15 U.S.C. § 1692a(4), whereas a debt collector is one who attempts to collect

\ debts "owed or due or asserted to be owed or due another." Id. § 1692a(6). For purposes of
applying the FDCPA to a particular debt, these two categories 0 debt collectors and
creditors 0 are mutually exclusive. However, for debts that do not originate with the one
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attempting collection, but are acquired from another, the collection activity related to the i
debt logically could fall into either category. If the one who acquired the debt continues to I
service it, it is acting much like the original creditor that created the debt. On the other
hand, if it simply acquires the debt for collection, it is acting more like a debt collector. To
distinguish between these two cases, the FDCPA uses the status of the debt collector at
the time of assignment:

(6) The term "debt collector" means any person who 0 regularly collects
or attempts to collect, directly or indirectly, debts owed or due or asserted to
be due anotherO. The term does not include 0

(F) any person collecting or attempting to collect any owed or due or
asserted to be owed or due another to the
extent such activity 0 (iii) concerns a debt which was not in default at the
time it was obtained by such person.

15 U.S.C. § 1692a (emphasis added). Notwithstanding the general definitional language of
"debtor collector" as one "who regularly collects or attempts to collect 0 debts owed or due
or asserted to be due [tol another ,If by reason of this emphasized exemption language, the
courts consistently have interpreted the FDCPA as treating assignees as debt collectors if
the debt sought to be collected was in default when acquired by the assignee, and as
creditors if it was not. See Bailey v. Sec. Nat'l Serving Corp., 154 F.3d 384, 397 (7th Cir.
1998); Whitaker v. Ameritech Corp., 129 F.3d 952, 958 (7 th Cir. 1997); see also Asset
Acceptance" Corporation v. Othell Robinson, 244 Mich. App. 728, 625 N.W.2d 804 (Mich.
Ct. App. 2001) (cited by respondent) (same respondent conceded that it was subject to
FDCPA as a "debt collector," court determining that it was not a "collection agency" within

. meaning of Michigan collection practices act (MCPA) statutory definition). In Commercial
I Service of Pery. Inc. v. Fitzgerald , 856 P.2d 58 (Colo. Ct. App. 1993)(cited by the j

Department), the Colorado Court of Appeals, in interpreting its state Fair Debt Collection
l.. .. . ._ __._.. .._. ._ _..__.__._.__._ .. __ __ ._._ _ ._ . ._ _ __ _.__.._..__.. . .. _
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I Pra~tices Act, -which was patterned after the FDCPA, afforded the same treatment to
I assIgnees.

Significantly, the exemptions included in Section 20-489(a)(7) tracks the same
exemption language from the definition of "debt collector" contained in 15 U.S.C. §
1692a(6)(F), although evidently that language became unintentionally somewhat distorted
in the process of enactment. This conclusion is drawn from a "side-by-side" comparison of
the full texts of these provisions. 15 U.S.C. § 1692a(6) states, in pertinent part that the
term "debt collector":

does not include --

(F) any person collecting or attempting to collect any debt owed or
due

or asserted to be owed or due another to the extent such activity
(i)

is incidental to a bona fide fiduciary obligation or a bona fide
escrow

I

arrangement; (ii) concerns a debt which was originated by such
person;

(iii) concerns a debt which was not in default at the time it was

obtained by such person; or (iv) concerns a debt obtained by
such

6
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-------------------- ._----,-----------

person as a secured party in a commercial credit transaction
involving

the creditor."

New York City Administrative Code Section 20-489(a) states, in pertinent part that the
term "debt collection agency":

does not include:

(7) any person collecting or attempting to collect any debt owed or due
or asserted to be owed or due another to the extent such activity (i) is
incidental to a bona fide fiduciary obligation or a bona fide escrow
arrangement; (ii) concerns a debt which was originated by such person;
(iii) concerns a debt which was not in default at the time it was
obtained by such person as a secured party in a commercial credit
transaction involving the creditor.

I In my opinion, Section 20-489(a)(7)(iii) simply does not make sense except to read it,

I
consistently with the nearly identical language of the FDCPA exemption, as not including
"any person collecting or attempting to collect any debt owed or due or asserted to be

lowed or due another to the extent such activity 0 concerns a debt which was not in
I default at the time [or] it was obtained by such person as a secured party in a commercial
I credit transaction involving the creditor."
I

II Accordingly, my opinion is that the Legislature, in enacting these provisions of the
New York Administrative Code in 1984, LL. 65/1984 § 1, evidently intended to treat

L
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assignees in the same manner as they would be treated under the FDCPA. Accordingly,
consistent with the treatment by the courts of assignees in interpreting the FDCPA, my
opinion is that assignees should be treated as a "debt collection agency" under
Administrative Code Sections 20-489 and 20-490 if the debt, as here, sought to be
collected was in default when acquired by the assignee.

It is my further opinion that the statutory language of Section 20-489 otherwise is
not so plain as to mandate its enforcement according to its terms. See, ~, Commercial
Service of Perry. Inc. v. Fitzgerald, supra, 856 P.2d at 60-61 (noting that Colorado's
similarly worded licensing law is "far from a model of clarity"). Accordingly, Administrative i

Code Section 20-103 directs me to construe the statute "liberally" in accordance with the .
legislative declaration set forth in Section 20-101, i.e., among other things, in accordance
with the "protection and relief of the public from deceptive, unfair and unconscionable
practices." I am also guided by the legislative declaration to Administrative Code
Subchapter 30 ("Debt Collection Agencies") set forth in Section 20-488:

I
I
L-

The council hereby finds the presence of consumer related problems
with respect to the practices of debt collection agencies whose sole concern is
the collection of debts owed to the clients. While the majority of those engaged
in this business are honest and ethical in their dealings, there is a minority of
unscrupulous collection agencies in operation that practice abusive tactics
such as threatening delinquent debtors, or calling such people at outrageous
times of the night. These actions constitute tactics which would shock the
conscience of ordinary people. Due to the sensitive nature of the information
used in the course of such agency's everyday business, and the vulnerable
position consumers find themselves in when dealing with these agencies, it is
incumbent upon this council to protect the interests, reputations and fiscal
well-being of the citizens of this city against those agencies who would abuse
their privilege of operation. It is hereby declared that the city should license
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I debt collection agencies.

\ In this regard, the opinion of the Colorado Court of Appeals in Commercial Perry, Inc. v.

I

Fitzgerald, supra, 856 at 60-61, in interpreting the similarly worded Colorado licensing
law is entirely persuasive:

i

Under [the Colorado} Act, a debt "owed or due another" would refer to credit
originally extended by another. Hence, those who originally extend credit are
not subject to the ActO. Those who take assignments of debt not in default
likewise are not required to obtain a license, though they are subject to the
Act's other provisionsO. However, a company which takes an assignment of a
debt in default, and is a business the principal purpose of which is to collect
debts, may be subject to the Act, even if the assignment is permanent and
without any further rights in the assignor.

This construction of the statute gives sensible effect to all parts of the
statutory schemer,} avoids rendering anyone provision meaningless, and
avoids an interpretation that would lead to an absurd resultD. It also gives
effect to the apparent legislative goal of regulating those in the business of
collecting stale debts who are likely to have no further contact with the
consumer and often are unconcerned with the consumer's rights or needs.

In short, my determination is that collecting charged-off consumer debts for itself is
respondent's business, for which it requires a "debt collection agency" Departmental
license.

In my opinion, given that, previous to the issuance of this decision, the proper
construction of the relevant statute so as to treat assignees consistently with the courts'
treatment under the FDCPA was non-obvious, a monetary penalty should not be imposed.
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~derI

The respondent is found guilty of engaging in unlicensed activity from April 10, 2003 to
May 11, 2006, the originally scheduled hearing date.

The respondent is Ordered to pay to the Department a TOTAL FINE of $0.

It is further Ordered, that the above respondent shall immediately discontinue its
unlicensed activity at the above-referenced premises, and

It is further Ordered, that the above premises used primarily for the operation of the
illegal, unlicensed activity shall be SEALED if such illegal activity is not discontinued
within 10 days of the posting of this Order; and.

It is further Ordered, that any devices, items or goods sold, offered for sale, or available
for public use or utilized in the operation of a business and relating to such illegal activity
shall be removed, sealed or otherwise made inoperable if such illegal activity is not
discontinued within 10 days of the posting of this Order. Any perishable goods or food
products seized by the Department pursuant to the within Order which cannot be
retained without them becoming unwholesome, putrid, decomposed or unfit in any way
will be disposed of pursuant to the provisions of Section 17-323 of the New York City

I Administrative Code.

This constitutes the recommendation of the Administrative Law Judge.
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The recommendation of the Administrative Law Judge is approved.

[Rest of page intentionally left blank.]
DECISION AND ORDER:

~-,-

I Administrative Law Judge

I

-----~---

This constitutes an Order of the Department.

If the respondent has obtained a license, its failure to comply with this order
within 30 days shall result in the suspension of that license, and may result in the
suspension of any other Department of Consumer Affairs license(s) held by the
respondent.

Nancy J. Schindler
Deputy Director of Adjudication

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that, if you are found guilty of, or plead guilty to, such
unlicensed activity in the future, there shall be a presumption of continuous
unlicensed activity from the date of this decision to the date of the subsequent hearing

or settlement agreement.
I

I cc: Elizabeth Lang, Esq., Deputy Director for Litigation

I Arthur Sanders, Esq.
L _
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Law Office of Arthur Sanders
2 Perlman Drive 0 Suite 301
Spring Valley, NY 10977

Barbara A. Sinsley
Vice President
Compliance Counsel
2840 S. Falkenburg Road
Riverview, FL 33569

NOTICE TO RESPONDENT(S): If you wish to APPEAL this decision, or file a MOTION FOR
REHEARING, you must file your appeal or motion with the Director of Adjudication,
Department of Consumer Mfairs, 66 John Street, New York, NY 10038, within 30 days of the
date of this decision. You must include with your appeal or motion (1) a check or money
order payable to the Department of Consumer Mfairs for the sum of $25; and (2) a check or
money order payable to the Department of Consumer Affairs for the amount of the fine
imposed by the decision, or an application for a waiver, based upon financial hardship, of the
requirement to pay the fine as a requisite for an appeal, supported by evidence of financial
hardship including the most recent tax returns you have filed. In addition, you must serve a
copy of your appeal or motion for rehearing, and any related documents, on the Litigation and
Mediation Division of the Department of Consumer Affairs, 42 Broadway, 9th Floor, New York,
NY 10004.

Back to top

1

I

____ ----l
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Dept of C.onsumer Affairs v. AssetAcceptance LLCIlkIa AssetAcceptance Corp

CITY' 01' liBW YORK
DBPA.R'l'MBBT or COIiSUMER Al'l'A1R8.__..__._....._....,,-~ .....---._------.x
DBPARTJlERT OJ' CORSUMBR Al'PAIRS, APPEAL DETERMlliATI05

'Violation 1'IIm1!'!fel:
CoapJ8"'8ut PL1044927'

.. apl1lst·

ASSET ACCEP'!'AJlCB u.c
Ilk/a ASSET ACCBPTAHCE CORP.,

ReapoDAteIlt.

....--.........--........,.-.....--..-.....---..][

The respondent appeals from the l;)ecision dated July 24, 2006, insofar as it
found the respondent guilty of violating Administrative Code Section 20-490 by
engaging in unlicensed debt collection~ activi1;y 1

After due consideration of the arguments presented in the respondent's appeal
and the Department's reply, the Decision is afIIrmecL

The I'espondent argues on appeal that the Judge should not have intexpreted
"'debt collec:tion agency" as defined in Section 2Q-489(a) to apply to the
respondent However, the Judge was in tact correct that the respondent's activity
falls within that de:finition,

Section 2o-489(a) defines ·debt collection agency" as t4a person engaged in
business the principal purpOse of which is to regularly collect 01 attempt to
collect debts owed or due or assexted to bo owed or due to anotheI·,,· The record
establishes that the pIincipal purpose of the respondent's busin.ess is to collect
debts owed to others The fact that the respondent C8Jries out this ptUpose by
the two··step process of first purchasing the debts owed to o1:he.r5 and then
performing collection activities does not change the fact that conecting debts
owed to others is the principal purpose tor which the respondentts business
exists Accordingly, the respondent's activity falls within the language of Section
20-489{a)

._----_..~--

1 The Dc:partment's "objection" to dI, DecJsion iJlSOfa as It did DOt order !he respolldent to pay a fine for its
UlI1kellsed activity slWI I10t be colllidcred OIl &ppeal because &he DcpartmcI1t did not appeal witbill the required 30
day period, aDd did oot 3Ubmit a leqllOlt for I01llog of this time period. (See 6 RCNY Secl10n 6-40.)

NBWYORJ<cnYDIPART/oIENT ClYCOMMmRAl'FAJRS. 60 JOHN STIlBiI·JlBWY~ &\VYoJtlCI0038' (21~S61-7710
wwwmc,QOvlCJ::lNStfJlU:l



This interpretation is supported by the language of Section 20-489(a)(7)(iii).
which excludes from the definition of debt collection agency Many person
collecting or attempting to collect any debt owed or due or asserted to be owed or
due anothez to the extent such activity concetns a debt which was not in default
at the time it was obtained by such person as a secured part;y in a COIDmeIcia}

credit transaction involving the creditor" {emphasis added) An implication of this
limited exclusion is that the conection of other llobtained" debt falls within the
statute)s scope and that, in partiCuIlU,' a party's collection of debt that is in
default at the time the party obtains it does fall within the defmition of a debt
collection agency 2

Finally. the Judge's interpretation of the 4efinition of debt collection agency to
include the n:spondent's activity is mandated by both the statutory purpose and
public policy, The purpose of the debt collection 'law is to protect the public
against abusive debt collection practices by businesses whose sole concern is
collection of debt (and who therefore do not have the original creditor's impetus to
regulate their own conduct in the inter-est of maintaining the good will of their
customers). See Section 20·488. Inte1'pretation of the statute to exclude the
respondent's activity would mean that businesses could circumvetlt the
legislative purpose and deprive the public of the protection the statute was
intended to afford simply by purchasing debt before tIying to eoUcet it See
Centurion Capital Corporation a/a/0 Aspire Card v Robert Druce, Index No
29303{06 (Dec 21) 2006) (finding that a purchaser of defaulted debt whose
ptincipa! pwpoee is collection of that debt is 'a debt collection agency within the
mea.ning of Administrative Code Section 20.489)

The rcspondent)s argument on appeal that the Judge should have taken
administrative notice Qf the Department's "License Application Checklist,U which
states that "(a] person 01' business is a Debt Collection Agency if engaged in
business of which the principal purpose is to collect debts owed to another
person or entity,· is without merit Since the Checklist merely pw'aphrases the
definition of "debt collection agencY' set forth in Section 20-489, taking
administn1tive notice of it would have been unnecessarily duplicative

-----~._---

1 The Judge detennincd that SectiOl1489(a)(7)(iii) was intended to simply provide fOI an exemption for collection of
Bny debt "that was not ill det\uIt at the time it wa9 oblainod" by the colle(ltor RcJllldless ofw~lher the provision is
lead this way 01 as written, however, the exclusion of col1e~tionof(eIther some 01 all) debt that was nor in default
"at the time ir wa, obtained" impJie.s that coUeetlon ofothex "obtained" debt, that was i.e default W~II obtained, is
coycled by the stGtute

NEW YO/IXO ClTYDEPAK1~Nr 01' CONSJJMEJI AFFAIRS0 66 JOHN STREET t) NEw YORK. NIW YOII,( 10038 0 (212) ut -7770
~ IJVI' R't'IJ,,"tVJc,IU'IIf11
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so ORDERED:

~~)~
~aZalPh

Di:rectoI of Adjudicati

TO: Arthur Sanders, Esq,
2 Perlman Drive, Suite 301
Spring Valley, NY 10977-5230

Asset Acceptance LLC
28405 Van Dyke Ave
Warren, Ml 48093

Elizabeth Lang
Deputy Genet'al Counsel

cc: BEll baza A Sinsley
Vice President
Compliance Counsel
2840 S Falkenburg Road
Riverview. FL 33569

EnfoIcement
Licensing

NEW YORK C1'fY DEPAKTMENT 01' CONSUMUlAHAJI/$ 0 68 KIHN ST1IEET 0~ YORK. /VIEW YOM 100380 (2121 361 -7770
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CIVIL COURT OF THE CITY OF NEW YORK
COUNTY OF BRONX: PART 32
----------------------------~---~.- :--:..--------------------------X
MRC RECEIVABLES CORP.,

Plaintiffs,

-against-

PEDRO MORALES AfKJA MORALES PEDRO,

Defendant.

--------------------.-----~----------------------.------------X

DECISION and ORDER
Index No. 64334/06

Present: Hon. Mitchell Danziger
lCe

Recitation. as required by CPLR §2219(a), of the papers considered in reviewing the underling motion for summary
judgment:

Notice of Motion and ann~~xed Exhibits and Affidavits .l
Memorandum of Law 2 & 5
Affirmation in Opposition and annexed Exhibits 3
Attorney Affirmation .4

Upon the foregoing papers, the Decision/Order on this motion is as follows:
The motion by the defendant, Pedro Morales, seeks to dismiss the complaint pursuant to

CPLR 3211(a)(3), 3211 (a)(7) and 3211(a)(8).
Movant's asserts that for plaintiff to act as a 'debt collection agency in the City ofNew

Yark, the plaintiff must be licensed by the New York City Department of Conswner Affairs
(DCA) N.Y.C. Admin. Code §~0-489(a). Movant also asserts that the plaintiff is not licensed as
a debt collection agency in the City ofNew York.

Plaintiff's complaint asserts that the plaintiff, MRC Receivables Corp., is a foreign
corporation. Plaintiff described this matter as follows: "Plaintiff may be a debt buyer, but has not
engaged in collecting the debt from defendant in any way, shape or matter." Plaintiff also asserts
as follows:

Plaintiff did not enter into the credit card agreemen~ with
defendant. Plaintiff did not seek out defendant and solicit business
from defendant, and did not "do business" in the State ofNew
York for that purpose. Rather, plaintiff is an assignee of the
original creditor.

Plaintiff also submits a correspondence from the New York City Department of
Consumer Affairs, General Counsel, Maria Tepper, addressed to the law firm ofMalen &
Associates P.e. dated March 7, 2007 which states the following:

A debt buyer that merely purchases or acquires defaulted debt but
does not engage in collection activities itself does not require a
license from the Department.
The Code narrowly exempts from the definition of "debt collection



.. -~""""

agency" "any attomey-at-Iaw" collecting a debt as an attorney on
behalf of and in the name of a client" New York City
Administratiye Code §20-489(a)(5)(emphasis added). Thus, the
Code's exemption applies to those attorneys whose practice is
limited to legal activities such as the filing and prosecution of
lawsuits to redu.ce debts to judgments.

Movant asserts that th~ plaintiff is an unlicensed debt collection agency that is required to
be licensed under New York Administrative Code §20-489. The defendant also asserts that the'
letter from The New York City Department of Consumer Affairs, General Counsel, Maria
Tepper, is "a non-binding informal opinion letter."

There was no showing by the defendant that the plaintiff, MRC Receivables Corp.,
engaged in collection activities sufficient to require plaintiff to obtain a license from the New
York City Department ofConsumer Affairs. The defendant's argwnent that the letter from the
New York City Department of Consumer Affairs, General Counsel, is "infonnal and not
binding" is not persuasive. For the foregoing reaSons, the motion by the defendant to dismiss the
plaintiff s complaint is denied.

Issues as to serve and registration status of plaintiffhave been withdrawn and need not be
addressed on this motion.

Defendant shall serve :md file an answer to the complaint herein within twenty (20) days
of the date hereof.

This is the decision and order of the Court.

Dated: 5"" 7'()7
Bronx, New ork
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